
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

October 11, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Oct 11 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, West Side Middle School, 101 S. Nappanee St. 

Oct 11 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, West Side Middle School, 101 S. Nappanee St. 

Oct 11 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, West Side Middle School, 101 S. Nappanee St. 

Oct 25 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 25 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 25 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 
 

B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

C. STUDENT RECOGNITION 

JV Soccer Players 

D. BUILDING REPORT 
Building Energy Report – Jeff Komins 

Kristie Stutsman - Principal 

 
E. MINUTES - 

September 27, 2016 – Public Work Session 

September 27, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

F. TREASURER'S REPORT 

 
 Consideration of Claims 

 

 Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

 Extra Curricular Purchase - The Business Office seeks Board approval of an extra-
curricular purchase request. 



BOARD AGENDA October 11, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

 Partnership Agreement Update – Update on the partnership with Beacon Health 
Systems and the Community Foundation of Elkhart County. 

 
G. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 2016-2017 Board Meeting Schedule – The administration seeks Board approval 
of the proposed changes to the Board of School Trustees’ meeting schedule for 
2016-2017, and asks to waive 2nd reading. 

 
 Agreement related to Calculation of Years of Service for Retirement and VEBA 

Eligibility – The administration seeks Board approval of the Agreement and asks 

to waive 2nd reading. 
 

 Grant Approval – It is recommended the Board approve submission of grants as 

recommended by the administration. 
 

 New Course Offerings – The administration seeks Board approval of proposed 

new course offerings. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 

trip requests. 
 

H. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

I. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 

 From Board 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 

 













MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

September 27, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Tony England Dawn McGrath 
 Shawn Hannon Gary Sawtelle 
 Doug Hasler Kevin Scott 
 Rob Haworth Doug Thorne 
 Brenda Kolbe Bob Woods 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board was introduced to Gary Sawtelle; heard Tony England, assistant 
superintendent of student services, provided a count clarification for School 
Without Walls; discussed information from the ISBA conference; and discussed 

agenda items for the regular Board meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:05 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 1. 

MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

September 27, 2016 
 

J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 7:00 

p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 

Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The Pledge of allegiance was recited. 

 

Call to 
Order/Pledge 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
September 13, 2016 – Public Work Session 
September 13, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 

September 20, 2016 – Public Meeting 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

Shawn Hannon, assistant superintendent of communication and data, 

presented a communication update.  The report included recent media 
coverage; current stories including American Sign Language being 
offered at the high schools, the food service showcase, and the strategic 

plan. 
 

Communication 

Update 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$6,329,136.96 as shown on the September 27, 2016, claims listing.  
(Codified File 1617-38) 
 

Payment of 

Claims  

The Board received a financial report for the period January 1 – August 
31, 2016.  In response to Board inquiry, further information will be 
provided on two accounts. 

 

Financial Report 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $500 from 
Elkhart County Farm Bureau to the Elkhart Area Career Center (EACC) 
Future Farmers of America (FFA) Chapter for jackets and other contest 

materials; eight Lenovo Chromebooks from Donors Choose to Mary 
Feeser; $250 from the VFW Men’s Auxiliary and $350 from the VFW 
Ladies Auxiliary to Food Services to pay student negative balances at 

Hawthorne and Monger, respectively; one Blessing flute, one Bundy flute 
and one Mendihi trumpet valued at $200.00, $150.00 and $20.00 
respectively, from Jorge deLeon to ESC’s music department; $500.00 

from Passionately Purple, the Sarah Crane Foundation to Elkhart 
Memorial’s girls/boys cross country team for miscellaneous costs; $500 
each from Frank Lucchese and Verba DeMauro, Osolo Township Trustee 

Gift Acceptance 

 



 

 2. 

to Osolo in support of their Title I Meeting and Annual Back to School 
Picnic; and $2,000 from Northern Indiana Volleyball Association (NIVA) 
to West Side for their volleyball and athletic programs.  The Board 

acknowledged the generous patrons who support our schools. 
 
By unanimous action, the Board approved the 2017 Budget as presented 

at the Board’s August 23rd regular meeting and September 13th public 
hearing.  No comments, questions or concerns were expressed by the 
Board or audience members.  (Codified File 1617-39) 

 

2017 Budget 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the 2017 Capital Projects 
Fund Plan, as presented at the Board’s August 23rd regular meeting and 

September 13th public hearing.  No comments, questions or concerns 
were expressed by the Board or audience members. (Codified File 1617-
40) 

 

2017 Capital 
Projects Fund 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the 2017 School Bus 
Replacement Fund Plan, as presented at the Board’s August 23rd regular 

meeting and September 13th public hearing.  No comments, questions or 
concerns were expressed by the Board or audience members.  (Codified 
File 1617-41) 

 

2017 Bus 
Replacement 

Fund 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a Tax Neutrality Resolution 
authorizing a reduction to the 2017 Capital Projects, Transportation 

Operating, and Bus Replacement Funds by an amount equal to the levy 
for debt service on the pension bonds. (Codified File 1617-42) 
 

Tax Neutrality 
Resolution 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution authorizing 
reductions, which may be required at the budget hearing with the 
Department of Local Government Finance.  (Codified File 1617-43) 

 

Resolution for 
Budget 
Reduction 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fund raisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1617-44) 
 

Fundraiser 
Approval 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved submitting an application for 
an advance from the Indiana Department of Education Common School 
Fund Loan for approximately $1.2 million.  Doug Hasler, chief operating 

officer, reported the interest on the loan is one percent and will be used 
to purchase equipment for the one-to-one technology program. 

 

Common 
School Fund 
Loan 

 

Doug Hasler reported the lease agreement regarding the future aquatic 
center with Beacon Health Systems and the Community Foundation of 

Elkhart County has been reviewed and suggested revisions have been 
sent to legal counsel.  Discussion ensued regarding owning vs. leasing, 
pre-commencement and annual operational rent, and scheduling.  The 

Board expressed concern regarding the length of time involved in 
finalizing the agreement. 
 

Partnership 
Agreement 

Update 
 



 

 3. 

By unanimous action, the Board tabled a vote on the Bristol-Washington 
Township Library Board of Trustees appointment. 

Bristol Public 
Library Board 
Appointment 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the EACC’s agreements with 
its feeder schools – Baugo, Bremen, Concord, Edwardsburg, Goshen, 
Middlebury, Penn-Harris-Madison, School City of Mishawaka, and Wa-

Nee.  (Codified File 1617-45) 
 

Elkhart Area 
Career Center 
Agreements 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the submission of grants as 

recommended by the administration.  Dawn McGrath, deputy 
superintendent, reviewed the new grant reporting format.  (Codified File 
1617-46) 

 

Grant 

Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 
accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 

administration on the September 27, 2016 listing. (Codified File 1617-
47) 
 

Conference 
Leaves 

By a vote of 6 yea and 1 nay, the Board approved the following 
personnel recommendations of the administration:  

Personnel 
Report 

An agreement regarding a partial professional leave for a certified 
staff member. (Codified File 1617-48) 
 

Consent 
Agreement 

Employment of certified staff member Melissa Butner, music at 

Beck for the 2016-2017 school year effective 9/19/16. 
 

Certified 

Employment 
 

Maternity leave for certified staff member Jessica Moreno, grade 

6 at Monger, beginning 10/24/16 and ending 11/11/16. 
 

Certified 

Leave 

Partial professional leave for certified staff member Shawn 
Hannon, assistant superintendent of communication & data, 

beginning 10/3/16 and ending 6/30/18. 
 

Professional 
Leave 

Administrative appointment of certified staff member, Gary 

Sawtelle as director of technology, effective 9/28/16. 

Administrative 

Appointment 

Resignation of the following ten (10) classified employees 

effective on dates indicated:   
Janice Borgman - food service at Osolo, 9/6/16 
Kimberly Buckley - food service at Cleveland, 9/16/16 

Toby Carter - tech support tech I at Tech Services, 9/13/16 
Heidy Cruz - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 9/16/16 
Amanda Goodknight - paraprofessional at Cleveland, 10/3/16 

Rodney Herron - misc. food service truck driver at 
  Commissary, 9/23/16 
Karen Nees - bus helper at Transportation, 9/23/16 

Tyresha Peoples - food service at Tipton/Central, 9/8/16 
Lisa Rose - paraprofessional at Beck, 9/16/16 
Coriene Woods - paraprofessional at Monger, 9/13/16 

Classified 

Resignation 



 

 4. 

Regular employment for the following twelve (12) classified 
employees who have successfully completed their probationary 
periods, on dates indicated:  

Jessica Ake - bus driver unassigned at Transportation,  
   9/19/16 
Stacey Borst - secretary at Daly, 9/26/16 

Jane Cooper - food service Pierre Moran, 9/26/16 
Jerry Fuller - bus driver unassigned at Transportation,  
   9/19/16 

Belinda Hines - food service at West Side, 9/26/16 
Casey Lott - paraprofessional at Beck, 9/27/16 
Collin Rowland - bus driver unassigned at Transportation, 

   9/19/16 
Erin Schrock - social worker at Daly/Feeser, 9/26/16 
Kristin Thalheimer - food service at Memorial, 9/27/16 

LeAnn Thompson - paraprofessional at Riverview, 9/27/16 
Morgan Winters - food service at North Side, 9/26/16 
Bethany Zartman - secretary at Eastwood, 9/15/16 

 

Classified 
Employment 

Termination of classified employee Garrett Paulson, custodian at 
building services, effective 9/27/16 in accordance with GDPD  

c, f, g. 
 

Classified 
Termination 

Board members reported on their participation at the Indiana School 

Board Association (ISBA) meeting held in Indianapolis.  The ISBA will 
lobby for permanent approval to use certain Capitol Project Funds to pay 
utilities, insurance, etc., to replace the current yearly legislative 

extension of this use of local tax funds. 
 

From the  

Board 
 

  



 

 5. 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:00 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 

 
  ____________________________________  
  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 

 
 
  _____________________  ______________ 

  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



 

 

 
1 Blazer Blvd. 

Elkhart, IN 46516 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:     October 4, 2016  

 
TO:         Dr. Rob Haworth  
               Board of School Trustees  
 
FROM:  Brian Buckley  
               Elkhart Central Athletic Department  
 
RE: Donation Approval  
 
A donation in the amount of $3,200.00 has been given to the Elkhart Central High 

School football team from Bob and Amy Martin.  This donation will assist in 

strengthening the growth of our football program at Elkhart Central. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation 

and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to the 

following: 

Mr. and Mrs. Bob Martin 

15933 County Road 129 

Bristol, IN 46507 
 







 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Haworth 

  Board of school trustees 

   

From: Kevin scott 

 
Date:  October 6, 2016  

 

Subject/  extra curricular purchase 

The Business Office recommends Board approval of purchase of the following items from 
extra-curricular funds: 
 
SCHOOL/ACCOUNT       ITEM           AMOUNT 

 
 

North Side Extra-Curricular 20 kelly green/white tops   $1,313.96 

                                                      20 kelly green/white skirts  

     20 sets green/white pom poms     

                                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













 
 

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
Regular Board of School Trustees’ Meetings - 2016-2017 

 
Regular meetings will be held at 7:00 p.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 

California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted. 
 

A public work session is held at 5:30 p.m. preceding each regular meeting in the J.C. Rice 
Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana unless otherwise noted 

 

July  12, 2016 
 

 January  10, 2017  July  11, 2017 
 

July  26, 2016 
 

 January 24, 2017  July  25, 2017 
 

August    9, 2016 
 

 February 14, 2017  
at Pinewood 
 

 August    8, 2017 
 

August  23, 2016 
at Cleveland 
 

 February 28, 2017 
5 pm at No. Side prior to BB 

 August  22, 2017 
at Beardsley 
 

September 13, 2016 
 

 March  14, 2017  September 12, 2017 
 

September 27, 2016 
 

 March  28, 2017 
at Memorial 

 September 26, 2017 
 

October 11, 2016  
at West Side 
 

 April  11, 2017  October 10, 2017  
at Daly 
 

October 25, 2016 
at North Side 

 April  25, 2017  October 24, 2017 
 

November   8, 2016 
 

 May    9, 2017 
at Monger 
 

 November 14, 2017 
 

November 22, 2016  
 

 May  23, 2017   November 28, 2017 
 

December 13, 2016 
at Feeser 
 

 June  13, 2017  December 12, 2017 
at North Side 
 

December 20, 2016*  June  27, 2017  December 19, 2017* 
 
Any changes to the regular meeting schedule will be determined by Board action and special 
notice of any variance in date, time, or location will be posted and mailed to persons who have 
requested the same. 

Public Work Sessions - 2016-2017 
Public work sessions will be held at 7:00 a.m. in the J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 
California Road, Elkhart.  
 

July  19, 2016 January 19 & 20, 2017** July  18, 2017 
August  16, 2016 February 21, 2017 August  15, 2017 
September 20, 2016 March             21, 2017  September 19, 2017 
November  15, 2016 April              18, 2017 November  21, 2017 
December  20, 2016* May  16, 2017 December  19, 2017* 
 June  20, 2017  
* denotes 8:00 a.m. ** denotes – Annual Board Retreat  

 

The Board’s meeting site is accessible to all persons. Any person requiring accommodation or assistance 
should contact the Assistant Secretary to the Board of School Trustees with the School Corporation’s 
administrative office, located at 2720 California Road, Elkhart, Indiana 46514, at 574-262-5506. 

 

Updated by Board – June 14, 2016 
Proposed change – October 11, 2016 




































	Agenda
	Building Report - West Side Middle School
	Minutes - Work Session September 27 2016
	Minutes - September 27 2016
	Gift Acceptance - CHS
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Fundraisers
	Extra Curricular Purchase Memo to Board
	Extra Curricular Request
	Board Meeting Schedule 2016-2017 rev Oct
	Agreement
	Grant Submissions
	New Course Offerings
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leave Report
	Personnel Report

